BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MEETING OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY, 11TH NOVEMBER 2009 AT 6.00 P.M.

CONFERENCE ROOM, THE COUNCIL HOUSE, BURCOT LANE, BROMSGROVE

MEMBERS:  |ndependent Members: Mr. N. A. Burke (Chairman) and Ms. D. Roberts

(Vice-Chairman)
Councillors: Miss D. H. Campbell JP, Mrs. A. E. Doyle and E. C. Tibby
Parish Councils' Representatives: Mr. J. Cypher and Mr. I. A. Hodgetts

Observer: Mr. S. Malek (Non-voting Deputy Parish Councils
Representative)

AGENDA

HEARING PROCEDURE NOTES (Pages 1 - 4)

1.

2.

To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitutes
Declarations of Interest

To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Standards
Committee held on 23rd September 2009 (to follow)

Final Determination of an alleged failure to follow the Code of Conduct -
Complaint Ref: 14/08 (Pages 5 - 54)

[To make a final determination in relation to an alleged failure by a Parish
Councillor to follow the Code of Conduct.]

Monitoring Officer's Report (Pages 55 - 66)

[To receive a report from the Monitoring Officer on any matters of relevance to
the Committee.]



6. To consider any other business, details of which have been notified to the
Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services prior to the
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman, by reason of special
circumstances, considers to be of so urgent a nature that it cannot wait until
the next meeting

7. Exclusion of the Public

[Should it prove necessary, in the opinion of the Joint Chief Executive, to
exclude the public from the meeting at any point during the proceedings in
relation to any items of business on the grounds that either exempt and/or
confidential information is likely to be divulged, the following resolution(s) will
be moved:

"That under Section 100 | of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended,
it/they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part | of
Schedule 12A to the Act, as amended, the relevant paragraphs of that part
being (...to be specified by the Chairman at the meeting), and that it is in the
public interest to do so.", and/or

"That under Section 100 A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended,
it/they involve the likely disclosure of confidential information which would be
in breach of an obligation of confidence."]

K. DICKS
Joint Chief Executive

The Council House
Burcot Lane
BROMSGROVE
Worcestershire
B60 1AA

30th October 2009



Agenda Annex

Standards Committee
Final Determination — Hearing Procedure

Representation

1. The Subject Member who is the subject of the allegation (“the Subject
Member”) may be represented or accompanied during the meeting by a
solicitor, counsel or another person; the permission of the Standards
Committee is required to allow the Subject Member to be represented
or accompanied by a non-legal representative. The Committee may
choose to withdraw its permission to allow a representative if that
representative disrupts the hearing.

Legal Advice

2. The Committee may take legal advice from its legal advisor at any time
during the hearing or while they are considering the outcome. The
substance of any legal advice given to the Committee should be
announced to the meeting.

Introduction

3. The Chairman will introduce the members of the Committee, the
Investigating Officer and the officers present. The Subject Member will
introduce any person who is acting as his or her representative and any
witnesses to be called on his or her behalf. The Investigating Officer
will introduce any witnesses to be called.

4. The Chairman will outline the procedure to be followed.

Preliminary Issues

5. The Committee will then consider and decide on any preliminary issues
which have not been resolved as part of the pre-hearing process.

6. The Committee may formally exclude the public from its deliberations
and move to another room to consider those issues. On its return, the
Chairman will announce the Committee’s decision.

Facts in Dispute

7. The Committee will then identify whether there are any significant
disagreements about the facts contained in the Investigating Officer's
report.

8. If there are no disagreements about the facts, the Committee will move

to the next stage of the hearing — Did the Subject Member fail to
follow the Code at paragraph 16 below.

9. If there is a disagreement, the Investigating Officer, if present, will be
invited to make representations to support the relevant findings of fact
in the report. The Investigating Officer may call witnesses to give
evidence. The Committee will give the Subject Member an opportunity

Page 1



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

to challenge any evidence put forward by any witness called by the
Investigating Officer.

The Subject Member may then make representations to support his or
her version of the facts and call any necessary witnesses to give
evidence.

At any time, the Committee may question any of the people involved or
any of the witnesses, and may allow the Investigating Officer to
challenge any evidence put forward by witnesses called by the Subject
Member.

If the Subject Member disagrees with most of the facts, the
Investigating Officer may make representations on all the relevant
facts, instead of discussing each fact individually.

If the Subject Member disagrees with any relevant fact in the
Investigating Officer’s report, without having given prior notice of the
disagreement, he or she must give good reasons for not mentioning it
before the hearing. If the Investigating Officer is not present, the
Committee will consider whether or not it would be in the public interest
to continue in the Investigating Officer's absence. After considering the
Subject Member’s explanation for not raising the issue at an earlier
stage, the Committee may then:

a) continue with the hearing, relying on the information in the
Investigating Officer’s report;

b) allow the Subject Member to make representations about the
issue, and invite the Investigating Officer to respond and call any
witnesses, as necessary; or

C) postpone the hearing to arrange for appropriate witnesses to be
present, or for the Investigating Officer to be present if he or she
is not already.

The Committee will usually formally exclude the public from its
deliberations and move to another room to consider the
representations and evidence in private.

On its return, the Chairman will announce the Committee’s findings of
fact.

Did the Subject Member fail to follow the Code?

16.

The Committee will then consider whether or not, based on the facts it
has found, the Subject Member has failed to follow the Code of
Conduct.

Page 2



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

The Subject Member will be invited to give relevant reasons why the
Committee should not decide that he or she has failed to follow the
Code.

The Committee will then consider any oral or written representations
from the Investigating Officer.

The Committee may, at any time, question anyone involved on any
point they raise in their representations.

The Subject Member will be invited to make any final relevant points.

The Committee will formally exclude the public from its deliberations
and move to another room to consider the representations.

On its return, the Chairman will announce the Committee’s decision as
to whether or not the Subject Member has failed to follow the Code of
Conduct.

If the Subject Member has not failed to follow the Code of Conduct

23.

If the Committee decides that the Subject Member has not failed to
follow the Code of Conduct, the Committee will consider whether it
should make any recommendations to the relevant authority.

If the Subject Member has failed to follow the Code

24.

25.

26.

27.

If the Committee decides that the Subject Member has failed to follow
the Code of Conduct, it will consider any oral or written representations
from the Subject Member as to whether or not the Committee should
set a penalty and what form any penalty should take.

The Committee may question the Subject Member, and take legal
advice to ensure it has the information it needs in order to make a
decision.

The Committee will then move to another room to consider whether or
not to impose a penalty on the Subject Member and, if so, what the
penalty should be.

On its return, the Chairman will announce the Committee’s decision.

Recommendations to the authority

28.

After considering any oral or written representations from the
Investigating Officer the Committee will consider whether or not it
should make any recommendations to the relevant authority, with a
view to promoting high standards of conduct among Members.

The written decision

29.

The Committee will announce its decision on the day and provide a
short written decision on that day. A full written decision will be issued
shortly after the hearing.

Page 3



Making the Findings Public

30.

31.

32.

The Committee must arrange for a summary of the decision and
reasons for that decision to be published in one or more newspapers.
If the Committee finds that the Subject Member did not fail to follow the
authority’s Code of Conduct, the public summary must say this and
give reasons for this finding. In these cases, the Subject Member is
entitled to ask that no summary of the decision should be passed to
local newspapers.

If the Committee finds that the Subject Member failed to follow the
Code of Conduct but that no action is needed, the public summary
must say that the Subject Member failed to follow the Code, outline
what happened and give reasons for the Committee’s decision not to
take any action.

If the Committee finds that the Subject Member failed to follow the
Code and it sets a penalty the public summary must say that the
Subject Member failed to follow the Code of Conduct, outline what
happened, explain what penalty has been set and give reasons for the
decision made by the Committee.

Appeal

33.

The Subject Member may appeal against the decision within 21 days
from the date of the full written decision.

Page 4



Agenda ltem 4

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

11TH NOVEMBER 2009

FINAL DETERMINATION OF AN ALLEGED FAILURE TO FOLLOW THE
CODE OF CONDUCT - COMPLAINT REF: 14/08

Responsible Portfolio Holder Councillor Geoff Denaro

Responsible Head of Service Claire Felton, Head of Legal, Equalities
and Democratic Services and
Monitoring Officer

Non-Key Decision

1. SUMMARY

An allegation was made that a Parish Councillor (“the Subject Member”)
had failed to follow the Parish Council’'s Code of Conduct. The Standards
Assessment Sub-Committee referred the matter for local investigation.
The investigation has been completed and the Investigating Officer has
made a finding of failure to comply with the Code of Conduct. The
Standards Committee considered the Investigating Officer’s report on 23rd
September 2009 and decided that the matter was suitable for
determination by the Standards Committee. The Committee is therefore
requested to determine the matter.

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 Members are requested to consider the Investigating Officer’s report at
Appendix 1. Members may reach one of the following decisions:

2.1.1 that the Subject Member has not failed to comply with the relevant
Code of Conduct; or

2.1.2 that the Subject Member has failed to comply with the relevant
Code of Conduct but that no action needs to be taken; or

2.1.3 that the Subject member has failed to comply with the relevant
Code of Conduct and that a sanction should be imposed; sanctions
which can be imposed are:

2.1.31 censure;
21.3.2 restriction for a period not exceeding 6 months of the
Subject Member’s access to the premises of the

authority or the Subject Member's use of the
resources of the authority, provided that those

Page 5



21.2

2.1.33

2.1.34

2.1.3.5

2.1.3.6

2.1.3.7

2.1.3.8

2.1.3.9

2.1.3.10

2.1.3.11

restrictions are reasonable and proportionate to the
nature of the breach and that they do not unduly
restrict the Subject Member’s ability to perform the
functions of a member;

partial suspension of the Subject Member for a period
not exceeding 6 months;

suspension of the Subject Member for a period not
exceeding 6 months;

that the Subject Member submits a written apology in
a form specified by the Committee;

that the Subject Member undertakes such training as
the Committee specifies;

that the Subject Member participates in such
conciliation as the Committee specifies;

partial suspension of the Subject Member for a period
not exceeding 6 months or until such time as the
Subject Member submits a written apology in a form
specified by the Committee;

partial suspension of the Subject Member for a period
not exceeding 6 months or until such time as the
Subject Member has undertaken such training or has
participated in such conciliation as the Committee
specifies;

suspension of the Subject Member for a period not
exceeding 6 months or until such time as the Subject
Member has submitted an apology in a form specified
by the Committee; or

suspension of the Subject Member for a period not
exceeding 6 months or until such time as the Subject
Member has undertaken such training or has
participated in such conciliation as the Committee
specifies.

If by the date of the Committee meeting the Subject Member has
ceased to be a member of the relevant authority, the only sanction
available to the Committee is censure.

Page 6



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

BACKGROUND

The Standards Assessment Sub-Committee considered an allegation
about the Subject Member on 23rd January 2009 and decided to refer the
matter to the Monitoring Officer for local investigation having identified that
the Subject Member might have failed to comply with the Code of Conduct
by failing to register interests.

Following the Subject Member's completion and delivery to the Monitoring
Officer of a Register of Interests form on 3rd February 2009, the
Monitoring Officer referred the matter back to the Assessment Sub-
Committee for reconsideration under Regulation 16 of the Standards
Committee (England) Regulations 2008 (“the Regulations”). On 20th
February 2009 the Assessment Sub-Committee decided again to refer the
matter to the Monitoring Officer for local investigation having identified that
the Subject member might have failed to comply with the code of Conduct
by failing to register interests. The Monitoring Officer appointed an
Investigating Officer who has investigated the allegation and her report is
at Appendix 1.

The Investigating Officer has made a finding that the Subject Member has
failed to comply with the Code. The Standards Committee considered the
report at its meeting on 23rd September 2009 and decided:

3.3.1 that the matter was suitable for determination by the Standards
Committee; and

3.3.2 that the matter should not be treated as exempt business.

Therefore, in accordance with the Regulations the allegation has been
referred to the Standards Committee for final determination.

Pre-Hearing Process

Standards for England (SfE) advises that a pre-hearing process should be
followed before a final determination hearing to try to allow matters at the
hearing to be dealt with more fairly and economically by alerting the
parties to possible areas of difficulty and, if possible, allowing them to be
resolved before the hearing itself. A questionnaire has been sent to the
Subject Member to identify:

o if the Subject Member disagrees with any of the findings of fact in the
investigation report, and if so whether they are likely to be relevant to
the issues to be determined;

e whether evidence about those disagreements will need to be heard
during the hearing;

e decide whether there are any parts of the hearing that are likely to be
held in private;

Page 7



3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.1

e any factors the Subject member wishes the Standards Committee to
take into account if it finds that the Subject member has failed to
follow the Code of Conduct;

e whether the Subject Member will be represented at the hearing;

e whether the Subject member intends to call any witnesses; and

e whether any special arrangements need to be made.

In this instance the Subject Member has not responded to the
questionnaire and it is not known whether or not he intends to attend the
hearing. No reply has been received to any correspondence sent to the
Subject Member since the matter was referred for investigation.

Procedure for the Hearing
The procedure to be followed at the hearing is set out in the agenda
papers.

Non-attendance of the Subject Member

SfE guidance is that the Committee may consider the report in the Subject
Member’s absence if the Subject member does not attend the hearing. If
the Committee is satisfied with the Subject Member’s reasons for not
being able to attend the hearing, it should arrange for the hearing to be
held on another date.

Determining the Complaint

SfE guidance is that the hearing is a formal meeting of the Council and not
a court of law. Evidence is not given under oath but the Committee is
required to decide factual evidence on the balance of probabilities. The
Committee should work in a demonstrably fair, independent and politically
impartial way.

Sanctions

If the Committee finds that a Subject Member has failed to comply with the
Code of Conduct the sanctions which it may apply are set out in paragraph
2.

The Adjudication Panel for England has produced advice for its own case
tribunals which the SfE suggests should be considered by Standards
Committees. This advises that in deciding what action to take, the tribunal
should bear in mind an aim of upholding and improving the standard of
conduct expected of members of the various bodies to which the Codes of
Conduct apply, as part of the process of fostering public confidence in
local democracy. Thus the action taken by the Committee should be
designed both to discourage or prevent the particular Subject Member
from any future non-compliance and also to discourage similar action by
others. Tribunals should take account of the actual consequences which
have followed as a result of the Subject Member’s actions while at the
same time bearing in mind what the possible consequences might have
been even if they did not come about.

Page 8



3.12

3.13

3.14

SfE guidance provides that when deciding on a sanction the Committee
should ensure that it is reasonable and proportionate to the Subject
Member's behaviour. Before deciding what sanction to issue, the
Committee should consider the following questions, along with any other
relevant circumstances:

e What was the Subject Member’s intention? Did the Subject Member
know that he was failing to follow the Code of Conduct?

e Did the Subject member get advice from officers before the incident?
Was that advice acted on or ignored in good faith?

e Has there been a breach of trust?

e Has there been financial impropriety, for example improper expense
claims or procedural irregularities?

¢ What was the result of failing to follow the Code of Conduct?

What were the potential results of the failure to follow the Code of

Conduct?

How serious was the incident?

Does the Subject member accept they were at fault?

Did the Subject member apologise to the relevant people?

Has the Subject member previously been warned or reprimanded for

similar misconduct?

Has the Subject member failed to follow the Code of Conduct before?

e Is the Subject member likely to do the same thing again?

e How will the sanction be carried out? For example who will provide
the training or mediation?

e Are there any resource or funding implications? For example, of a
Subject Member has repeatedly or blatantly misused the relevant
authority’s information technology resources, the Committee may
consider withdrawing those resources from the Subject member.

Suspension may be appropriate for more serious cases, such as those
involving:
e Trying to gain an advantage or disadvantage for themselves or

others;
e Dishonesty or braches of trust; or
e Bullying.

Aggravating and mitigating factors when deciding sanctions

The Adjudication Panel for England has published guidance on
aggravating and mitigating factors it takes into account when assessing an
appropriate sanction and these include:

e An honestly held, although mistaken, view that the action
concerned did not constitute a failure to follow the Code of Conduct,
particularly when formed after taking appropriate advice;

e A Member’s previous record of good service;

e Substantiated evidence that the Member's actions have been
affected by ill-health;

Page 9



3.15

e Recognition that there has been a failure to follow the Code; co-
operation in rectifying the effects of that failure; an apology to
affected persons where that is appropriate, self-reporting of the
breach by the Member;

e Compliance with the Code since the events giving rise to the
determination;

e Actions which may have involved a breach of the Code may

nevertheless have had some beneficial effect for the public;

Dishonesty;

Continuing to deny the facts despite clear contrary evidence;

Seeking unfairly to blame other people;

Failing to heed appropriate advice or warnings or previous findings

of a failure to follow the provisions of the Code; and

e Persisting with a pattern of behaviour which involves repeatedly
failing to abide by the provisions of the Code.

Decision

The Committee should announce its decision at the end of the hearing and
SfE advises that it is good practice to make a short written decision
available on the day of the hearing. The Committee must give its full
written decision to the relevant parties as soon as possible after the
hearing, in most cases this should be within 2 weeks of the hearing. The
Committee must arrange for a summary of the decision and reasons for it
to be published in at least one newspaper circulating in the area of the
authority involved. If the Committee finds that the Subject member did not
fail to follow the Code of Conduct the Subject member is entitled to decide
that no summary of the decision should be passed to local newspapers.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The Local Government Act 2000 ss60-67 as amended provides the
statutory framework for the investigation of complaints against Members.
The Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008 as amended
govern the conduct of these proceedings. The Committee should also
take account of the guidance published by Standards for England on
Standards Committee Determinations.

COUNCIL OBJECTIVES

Improvement — it is vital for the reputation and credibility of the Council
that complaints against elected Members are seen to be robustly
investigated.

Page 10



10.

1.

12.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The main risk associated with the details included in this report is loss of
reputation. This risk is being managed as follows:

Risk Register: Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services
Key Objective Ref No: 3
Key Objective: Effective ethical governance

CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS

None.

EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

None.

VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

None

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Procurement Issues None
Personnel Implications None
Governance/Performance Management Adherence to the Code of

Conduct is a key element of
sound governance

Community Safety including Section 17 of | None
Crime and Disorder Act 1998

Policy None

Environmental None

OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT

Portfolio Holder No
Chief Executive No
Corporate Director (Services) No
Assistant Chief Executive No

Page 11




Head of Service No

Head of Financial Services No
Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic Yes
Services

Head of Organisational Development & HR | No

Corporate Procurement Team No

13. WARDS AFFECTED

All wards

14. APPENDICES

Appendix 1 Investigating Officer's Report

15. BACKGROUND PAPERS

e Standards Board for England guidance on Standards Committee
Determinations

e Standards Board for England guidance on Local Investigations

¢ Adjudication Panel for England’s guidance on decisions to be made
by a Case Tribunal where a Respondent has been found to have
failed to comply with a Code of Conduct

CONTACT OFFICER

Name: Claire Felton
E Mail: c.felton@bromsgrove.gov.uk
Tel: (01527) 881429

Page 12



INVESTIGATION : ref 14/08

FINAL REPORT

14" Auqust 2009

This report has been prepared in relation to an investigation conducted under
Section 59 of the Local Government Act 2000 by Vanessa Brown, Litigation Solicitor
(appointed by the Monitoring Officer) into an allegation concerning Parish Councillor
Dale Carter a member of the Catshill and North Marlbrook Parish Council who it is
alleged has failed to complete and submit a Register of Interest Form within the
statutory time limit.

CONTENTS:

Summary of the allegation.

Parish Councillor Dale Carter’s official details

Relevant sections of the Code of Conduct.

Evidence gathered.

Findings of Fact.

The Issues.

Reasoning as to whether there has been a Breach of the Code.

Findings as to whether there has been a failure to comply with the Code of
Conduct.

ONoOoaRWN =

APPENDICES:

Schedule of evidence taken into account.

A. Code of Conduct implemented by the Catshill and North Marlbrook Parish
Council 26™ June 2008

B. Copy of the meeting notes prepared by Vanessa Brown following a
meeting on 3™ June 2008 with Mrs. Deborah Warren - Deputy Monitoring
Officer and Senior Solicitor.

C. Copy of the meeting notes prepared by Vanessa Brown following a

meeting 21%' May 2009 with Ms. Gill Lungley, Parish Clerk for Catshill &
North Marlbrook.

Page 1 of 11

Page 13



D. Copy of the Agenda and Minutes from the Catshill and North Marlbrook
Parish Council meeting on the 26™ June 2008.

E. Copy correspondence from the Mrs. Warren — (Deputy Monitoring Officer
and Senior Solicitor), dated 8" September 2008, and 9" December 2008,
and from Mrs. Felton (Monitoring Officer) dated 6th January 2009.

F. Copy of the Register of Interest form signed on the 28" January 2009
received by the Monitoring Officer on the 3™ February 2009.

G. Decision Notice: Referral for Investigation.
H. Chronology.

I Schedule of Unused Material.

1. SUMMARY OF THE ALLEGATION

It is alleged that following the implementation by the Catshill & North Marlbrook
Parish Council of the new Code of Conduct on the 26™ June 2008 that Councillor
Dale Carter failed to complete and return his Register of Interests Form in
accordance with the statutory requirement to do so within 28 days. It is therefore
alleged that Councillor Carter has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct.

The Code of Conduct relevant to this investigation is provided at Appendix A and is
the new Code of Conduct implemented by the Catshill and North Marlbrook Parish
Council on the 26™ June 2008.

The allegation was reported to the Standards Assessment Sub—Committee for
consideration and was referred to the Monitoring Officer for local investigation and

determination, pursuant to Section 57A (2) of The Local Government Act 2000 as
amended.

There is one distinct part to the allegation:

(i) At the Catshill and North Marlbrook Parish Council meeting held on the
26™ June 2008 the Parish Council adopted the new Code of Conduct
(Appendix A). All Parish Councillors were aware of the statutory

Page 2 of 11

Page 14



requirement that a Register of Interest Form needed to be completed and
return to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of the Code being adopted.

It is alleged that Councillor Carter was aware of this requirement yet failed
to provide a completed Register of Interests Form within the statutory
time. That time period ended on the 24" July 2008 and it is alleged that
Councillor Carter failed to complete and return his Register of Interest
Form until 3" February 2009 which is the date it was received by the
Monitoring Officer.

2. PARISH COUNCILLOR DALE CARTER - OFFICIAL DETAILS

The information obtained in relation to this section of the report has been obtained
from the internet and from the Parish Clerk to Catshill and North Marlbrook as
Councillor Carter has chosen not to contribute in the preparation of this report.

Councillor Dale Carter became a Parish Councillor in Catshill and North Marlbrook in

May 2007. He sits on the committees for Planning, Events, Youth Groups and
Appeals.

3. RELEVANT SECTIONS OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT

The new Code of Conduct was introduced in 2007 and on the 26" June 2008 the
Catshill & North Marlbrook Parish Council adopted the full Code of Conduct
(Appendix A).

The allegation made against Councillor Carter is covered by the section of the
Code of Conduct detailed below:-

Part 3 of the Code — Register of Member’s Interests
13. (1) Subject to paragraph 14, you must, within 28 days of:

(a) this Code being adopted by or applied to the authority; or
(b) your election or appointment to office (where that is later),

register in your authority’s register of member's interests (maintained
under section 81 (1) of the Local Government Act 2000 ) details of your
personal interests where they fall within a category mentioned in
paragraph 8 (1)(a), by providing written notification to the authority’s
monitoring officer.

Page 3 of 11

Page 15



(2) Subject to paragraph 14, you must, within 28 days of becoming aware of
any new personal interest or change to any personal interest registered
under paragraph (1), register details of that new personal interest or
change by providing written notification to the authority’'s monitoring
officer.

Sensitive Information

14.(1)Where you consider that the information relating to any of your personal
interests is sensitive information and the authority’s Monitoring Officer agrees,
you need not include that information when registering that interest or as the
case may be, a change to that interest under paragraph 13.

(2) You must, within 28 days of becoming aware of the any change of
circumstances which means that information excluded under paragraph (1)
is no longer sensitive information notify the authority’s Monitoring Officer
asking that the information be included in the authority’'s Register of
Members’ Interests.

(3) In this Code “sensitive information “ means information whose availability for

inspection by the public creates, or is likely to create, a serious risk that you
or an person who lives with you may be subjected to violence or intimidation.

4. EVIDENCE GATHERED

In the course of this investigation | have had regard to the following evidence: -
4.1 The Code of Conduct Appendix A.

4.2 A meeting was held with Mrs. Deborah Warren, Deputy Monitoring Officer
and Senior Solicitor. The attendance note is found at Appendix B.

4.3 A meeting was held with Ms. Gill Lungley the Parish Clerk for Catshill &
North Marlbrook. The attendance note is found at Appendix C.

4.4 Documents provided by Ms. Lungley, include the Agenda and Minutes of the
meeting held on the 26™ June 2008 and they can be found at Appendix D.

4.5 There are three letters dated 8" September 2008, 9" December 2008 and 6"
January 2009 which were sent to Councillor Carter from the Monitoring Officer
and Deputy Monitoring Officer. These three letters are provided at Appendix E.

4.6 The completed Register of Interest Form signed by Councillor Carter on the

28™ January 2009 and received by the Monitoring Officer on the 3™ February
2009. Appendix F.

Page 4 of 11

Page 16



5.

4.7 The Decision Notice provided with instructions to commence the investigation
is provided at Appendix G.

4.8 Chronology of events is provided at Appendix H.

4.9 Schedule of Unused Material is provided at Appendix I.

SUMMARY OF THE MATERIAL FACTS

5.1 The allegation faced by Councillor Carter, centres on the implementation of
the new Code of Conduct which was introduced in 2007.

5.2 Parish Councils were required to adopt the Code and could do so either in its
entirety or they could exclude paragraph 12 (2) relating to “Effect of Prejudicial
Interest on Participation”.

5.3 With the implementation of the Code of Conduct came the statutory
requirement that all members return a completed Register of Interests Form to
the Monitoring Officer within 28 calendar days of the adoption the Code of
Conduct. In this instance the 28 days expired on the 24™ July 2008.

5.4 The Minutes held by the Catshill & North Marlbrook Parish Council indicate
that a copy of the new Code was distributed to the parish councillors at a
meeting held in October 2007 although there was nothing noted to say the new
Code had been adopted at the same time.

5.5 In early 2008 Ms. Lungley took up the position of parish clerk and in reviewing
the records noted that the new Code did not appear to have been formally
adopted. Therefore at a meeting held on the 26™ June 2008 the adoption of the
new Code of Conduct was included on the Agenda.

5.6 The Agenda item is specific with regards to the completion of the Register of
Interests Form and a blank form for completion was included with the papers
for the meeting. (Appendix D).

5.7 The Agenda item states:
“ ...members were required to complete a new Register of Interests form at
the same time to comply with the conditions of the Revised (2007) Code,
despite having already completed one only a few months earlier. These forms

are retained at Bromsgrove District Council and can be viewed by any
member of the public who so requests to see them. BDC have been in touch

Page 5 of 11

Page 17



recently asking for the Register of Interest forms, of which only six have been
fully completed by members of this parish council.

A blank form is being sent with these papers to those members who do not
yet appear to have completed a form- and apologies to those who receive a
form herewith and have already completed one, however BDC do not have
them on record. If BDC do not receive these forms they are obliged to inform
the local Standards Committee, who will be obliged to bar such a member
from office.”

5.8 The Minutes prepared following the meeting confirmed that it had been agreed
that the parish council would adopt the revised (2007) Members’ Code of
Conduct with paragraph 12 (2). It is also noted that councillors were reminded
of the need to complete the Register of Interest form.

5.9 The Minutes also confirm that Councillor Carter was present at the June 2008
meeting. (Appendix D).

5.10 Whilst the parish clerk provided the blank Register of Interest Form to the
parish councillors, responsibility for completing the form and ensuring it
reached the Monitoring Officer rested entirely with the individual councillors.

5.11 Once completed, the forms could be either given to the parish clerk who
would forward them to the Monitoring Officer or the councillor could send them
directly to the Monitoring Officer at Bromsgrove District Council.

5.12 Mrs. Warren (Deputy Monitoring Officer) was able to confirm that over the last
two years requests have been made of parish clerks to provide copies of their
adopted Code of Conduct and also Register of Interests Forms for parish
councillors so that a central record could be kept at the Council House.
Additionally, completed forms received directly from the councillors would
generally be copied and forwarded to the parish clerks to enable them to hold
their own records

5.13 On the 8" September 2008 Mrs. Warren was contacted by the Parish Clerk
for Catshill and North Marlbrook who was missing Register of Interests Forms
for two parish councillors. The same day Mrs. Warren wrote to both councillors,
one of whom was Councillor Carter, to request the completed Register of
Interests Form and advising that failure to provide the completed form within 28
days of the Code being adopted could amount to a breach of the Code of
Conduct. (Appendix E)

5.14 In November 2008 the Ms. Lungley the Parish Clerk also wrote to Councillor
Carter and sent him another blank Register of Interests Form for completion. A
short time later in the course of a conversation Councillor Carter confirmed to
the Ms. Lungley that he “had not got round to completing the form”. Councillor

Page 6 of 11

Page 18



Carter declined a further form stating that he had still the one previously
provided.

5.15 The parish clerk notified Mrs. Warren (Deputy Monitoring Officer) of the
conversation with Councillor Carter and this resulted in a further letter being
sent to Councillor Carter on the 9" December 2008 again to requesting a
completed Register of Interests Form. (Appendix E)

5.16 There was no response to this letter and so the matter was referred to the
Monitoring Officer, Mrs. Felton who wrote to Councillor Carter on the 6™
January 2009 to again request the completed form. (Appendix E)

5.17 The lack of response to any of the letters of request resulted in the matter
being referred to the Standards Assessment Sub-Committee for consideration.
It was determined that the matter should be referred the Monitoring Officer for
investigation. (Appendix G)

5.18 On the 3™ February 2009 the Monitoring Officer received the completed
Register of Interests Form from Councillor Carter. (Appendix F). It was sent in
by the parish clerk.

5.19 In discussion with Mrs. Warren (Deputy Monitoring Officer and Senior
Solicitor) and the Ms.Lungley (Parish Clerk) it has been established that there
are no training sessions available for parish councillors on either the
implementation of the new Code or the Register of Interests Form.

5.20 Councillor Carter has been written to on three occasions asking him to meet
with me to discuss the allegation made against him. There has been no
response to these requests nor has Councillor Carter taken up the offer to
provide written representations to be included in this report.

5.21 From information provided by the parish clerk and from information available
on the internet, | am able to confirm that Councillor Carter has been a councillor
since May 2007 and sits on committees for Planning, Events and Appeals. Ms.
Lungley (Parish Clerk) describes Councillor Carter as an active member who
willingly participates in all aspects of parish council work. | am unable to expand
on this information having not had the opportunity to meet with Councillor
Carter or to discuss this matter with him.

5.22 A chronology of events is at Appendix H.

Page 7 of 11

Page 19



6. REASONINGS AS TO WHETHER THERE HAS BEEN A BREACH OF THE
CODE

6.1 The new Code of Conduct was adopted by the Parish of Catshill and North
Marlbrook at a meeting held at the village hall on the 26" June 2008.

6.2 The Code of Conduct includes under Part 3, Register of Interest paragraph 13
(1) a requirement that members must, within 28 days of the Code being adopted
provide written notification of their personal interests. The Register of Interests
Form should have been completed and provided to the Monitoring Officer within
the statutory time period specified. In this case that time period expired on the
24™ July 2008.

6.3 At an earlier Parish Council meeting held in October 2007 guidance copies of
the Code were distributed to parish councillors. | am unable to establish whether
or not Councillor Carter received a copy of the guidance at this time.

6.4 | am able to establish from the Minutes obtained (Appendix D), that Councillor
Carter was present at the meeting held on the 26™ June 2008 when it was
resolved to adopt the full Code of Conduct. | am satisfied that Councillor Carter
was provided with a copy of a blank Register of interests form and | am equally
satisfied that both the Agenda and Minutes reflect the clear need for the Register
of Interests Form to be completed within the 28 day statutory period.

6.5 Ms. Lungley (Parish Clerk) was able to advise me that at the beginning of the
meetings attended by Councillor Carter that he always made a Declaration of
Interest that he was a member of NWWA. (Appendix D). This demonstrates
Councillor Carters’ understanding of the need for transparency when attending
meetings and it is therefore surprising that the same attention to detail was not
exercised when required to complete the Register of Interests Form.

6.6 Ms.Lungley (Parish Clerk) contacted Mrs. Warren (Deputy Monitoring Officer) to
assist in her attempts to obtain the completed forms from two councillors who by
September 2008 had still not completed the forms and submitted them to the
Monitoring Officer. On the 8" September 2008 Mrs. Warren (Deputy Monitoring
Officer) wrote to the councillors and not only requested the form be returned but
also gave clear advice that failure to do so could amount to a breach of the Code.

6.7 In November 2008 Ms. Lungley, the parish clerk, also wrote to the Councillor
Carter requesting the form be completed and submitted. There was no response

to this letter or to the letter sent by Mrs. Warren (Deputy Monitoring Officer) in
September 2008.

Page 8 of 11

Page 20



6.8 Shortly after this time Ms. Lungley (parish clerk) saw Councillor Carter at a
parish council meeting and when asked about the form he confirmed he “had not
got round to it”.

6.9 On the 9" December 2008 Mrs. Warren (Deputy Monitoring Officer) was again
alerted to the fact the forms had not been received and a further letter was sent
making the same request. Again there was no response.

6.10 The matter was then referred to Mrs. Felton, the Monitoring Officer who on
the 6™ January 2009 wrote to Councillor Carter again requesting the completed
form.

6.11 There was a total lack of response from Councillor Carter up until this time
and even then it was only on the 28" January 2009 that the form was signed. It
was received by the Monitoring Officer on the 3™ February 2009 having been
forwarded by the parish clerk.

6.12 | have had particular regard to the fact Councillor Carter was present at the
meeting at which the Code was adopted and it is clear from his regular
declaration this he is aware of the importance of considering possible
conflicting interests at the beginning of all meetings. In my opinion such factors
compound his failure to complete the form within the time limit

6.13 | have considered and have had significant regard to the four letters sent to
Councillor Carter requesting the completed form. It is regrettable that the first
letter did not prompt a response and that three further letters making the same
request was necessary.

6.14 | have considered the comments made to Ms. Lungley (Parish Clerk) in
November 2008 in which Councillor Carter stated he “had not got round to it". By
this time there had been attempts by both Mrs. Warren (Deputy Monitoring
Officer) and Ms. Lungley (Parish Clerk) to obtain the form yet it still took a further
letter from Mrs. Warren on the 9" December 2008 (Appendix E) and the
intervention of the Monitoring Officer on the 6" January 2009 (Appendix E) to
secure the completed Register of Interests Form. (Appendix F)

6.15 Mrs. Warren (Deputy Monitoring Officer) at one stage thought the form may
have been received but upon checking the records it was apparent that the form
remained outstanding. This is supported by the comments made by Councillor
Carter to Ms. Lugley (Parish Clerk) in November and the lack of response from
him to the contrary.

6.16 | am unable to include comments/representation from Councillor Carter as he
has declined to contribute to the investigation and ultimately to the preparation of
this report.

Page 9 of 11

Page 21



6.17 Upon reviewing the completed Register of Interests Form | have noted that it
contains little information and | doubt would have taken more than a few minutes
to complete. Yet the amount of time and effort afforded by others to obtain this
form is extensive and could have been avoided had Councillor Carter addressed
his mind to any of the numerous requests made of him

6.18 The Parish Clerk made it very clear in the Agenda and is reflected in the
Minutes of the June 2008 meeting, that it was imperative for the Register of
Interests Form to be completed and submitted. The Code was adopted by the
Parish Council and | take the view that all councillors irrespective of their
attendance at the meeting are bound by the Code and the obligations it places
upon them as individuals.

6.19 The Code of Conduct is agreed and adopted by all councillors and as such, in
my opinion, should be viewed as carrying the same weight as legislation. | see
the Code of Conduct as the only true way in which the public can measure the
trust it places in those representing their interests as it represents the standard
against which the public will judge the conduct of the any councillors. Its
purpose is to ensure transparency in all work carried out in the name of the
council.

6.20 | anticipate that only a relatively small percentage of the public ever come into
direct contact with their parish councillor. Unless there is a personal issue that
directly affects them, most will never need to examine the Code of Conduct or
look at the Register of Interests. It is therefore absolutely essential that those
who do examine the Register of Interests have access to the information in
accordance with the Code of Conduct and the time limits attached to it.

6.21 It must therefore follow that had a member of the public wished to look at the
Register of Interests they would have been deprived of any relevant information
pertaining to Councillor Carter.

6.22 It is without doubt solely the responsibility of the individual councillors to
ensure that they complete the Register of Interests Form and submit it to the
Monitoring Office within the statutory time limit. In the absence of any
comments or representations from Councillor Carter it is difficult to explain why
it took almost 7 months for him to complete such a simply task.

7. FINDINGS AS TO WHETHER THERE HAS BEEN A FAILURE TO COMPLY
WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT

71 With regard to the allegation that Councillor Carter failed to comply with the
Code of Conduct in that he did not return a completed and signed Register of

Page 10 of 11

Page 22



Interest Form within 28 days of the new Code of Conduct being adopted | find
as follows:

The new Code of Conduct was adopted by Catshill and North Marlbrook
Parish Council on the 26" June 2008. There is a statutory requirement that all
Councillors complete a Register of Interest Form and return it to the
Monitoring Officer within 28 days of the Code being adopted.

For the reasons set out at paragraph 6 | find that Councillor Carter failed to
comply with Part 3 paragraph 13 (1) of the Code of Conduct as he did not
provide the Monitoring Officer with the completed Register of Interests Form
within 28 days of the Code of Conduct being adopted by the parish council
and | therefore find that Councillor Carter has breached the Code of Conduct.

Councillor Carter has not contributed to the preparation of this report despite
being given opportunity to do so. | am therefore unable to assess whether this
breach of the Code is a mere oversight or a blatant disregard to the Code of
Conduct and the obligations attached to it.

The evidence collated in the course of this investigation has been carefully
considered and assessed and my findings are based on the balance of
probability burden of proof.

This is the final report prepared by Vanessa Brown which represents the
findings and conclusions of the investigation into an allegation made
against Parish Councillor D Carter.

This final report will be presented to the Standards Committee

Signed Dated

Page 11 of 11

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



Appench\g A

STATUTORY INSTREUMENTS

20077 No. 1159
LOCAL GOVERNI\{[ENT, ENGLAND AND WALES

The Local Authorities (Model Code of Conduct) Order 2007

Made - - - - 2nd April 2007
Loid before Parliament dth April 2007
Coming mto force - - Ird May 2007

The Secrefary of State for Communities and Local Government makes the following Ordsr in
exercise of the powers conferred by sections 50013 and (4, 81(2) end (3), and 10502}, (3) aod (4)
of the Local Government Act 2000(a).

The Secretary of State has consulted in accordance with section 3005 of that Aet.

The Secretary of State is satisfied that this Order i eomsistent with the pnnmplcs for the time
being specified in an order under seciion 49(1) of that Act{h.

Citation, commencement and applicaiion
1.—{1) This Order may be cited as the Local Authorities (Model Code of Conduct)y Order 2007
and comes into farce on 3rd May 2007, .
{2 This Order applies—
{2) Imrelation to police authoritics in Bogland and Wales; and -
{b) inrelation fo the following authorities in England—
(1) a county council,;
(11] a district council;
(iti} a London horough connetl;
{iv) a parish couneil,
() the Greater London Authority;
(v} the Metropolitan Police Authority,
(vii) the London Fire and Emergency Planning Anthority;
(viif) the Conmon Coungil of the City of London,
(i) the Cownci! of the Isles of Scilly;
() afire and rescue suthority;
(1) 4 joiot authority;
(xii} the Broeds Authority; and

() 2HD ez
(b} Seetne Belevant Aulharilies (Genetel Principles) Order 20001 (5.1 200174077,

Page 25. _ (DCLG 5018)




fe) the National Park and Broads Authorities (Model Code of Conduct) (England) Onder
2001(a); and
(d) the Police Anthorities (Model Code of Conduct) Order 2001(b).
{2) The Orders referred to in paragraph (1) continue to bave effect for the purposss of and for
purposes conogcted with — .

(1) the investigaifon of any written allzgation Umiar Part 3 of the Local Government Act
2000, where that allegation relates to conduct which took place before the date when,
pursuant to section 31 of that Actk—

(1) the awhority adopts a code of conduct incorporating the mﬁndatury provisions of the
Code in the Schedule to this Order in place of their exisfing code of conduct; |
(i) the authority revises their existing code of conduet to incorporate the mandatory
provisions of the Code in the Scheduls to this Ooder; o
(iii) the mandatory provigions of the Code in the Schedule to this Order apply to
merabers or eo-opted members of the authority under section 31(3)(b) of that Act;
(b} the adjudication of 8 matter reised in such an allegation, and
fc) an appeal against the decision of an interhm case tribupal or case tribunsl in IeIatmn fo
such an allegation.

{3) Any order made under section 83 of the Local Government Act 1972(c) shall have effect for
the purpose of prescribing the form of & declaration of acceptance of ¢ffice in relation to a county
coumeil, distoet couneil, Londan borowgh ecuncil and & parish council,

Signed on hehalf of the Secrefary of State for Communities and Locel Covermment

Fhil Boolas
Minister of State
2nd Aprit 2007 Department for Communities and Local Government

[a) S.L20DLFA57T.

by 8.1 200153578,

(e) Orders mads under section 83 of the Loral Govenment Act 1972 were disapplied, by the Drdm mentioned in artiele 4{ 18]
and (B) of this Ooder, and are here being revived,

Pagei26




(2) on another relevant anthority, you must, when acting for that other authunt}r, corply with
that ather authority's code of conduct; or

() on eny other body, you musi, when acting for thet other body, comply with }"c:mr
anthority’s coda of conduct, except and insofar as it conflicts with any eother lawful
obligations to which that other body may be subject.

(7eneral obligafions

3.—{1) You must treat others with respect.
{2} You must not—

{a) do anything which may cause your authority to breach any of the equality epactments (as
defined in s2etion 33 of the Equality Act 2006(a0);

{&) bully any person;’
{c} intimidate or atternpt to infimidate eny person who is or is likely to ha—
(i) & complainant,
(ii) a witness, or
(iif) imvolved in the administration of any Investigation or procesdings,

in relation to an allepation that a member (including yourself) has failed to comply with
hiz or her authority's ¢ode of conduct; or

{d) do anything which compromises or i likely fo compromise the impartiality of those who
‘waork for, or on behalf of, your authority.

(%) In relation to police authorities and the Metropokitan Police Autharity, for the purposes of
sub-paragraph (23(d) those who work for, or on behwlf of, an authority ere deemed to include a

police officer.
4, Youmust not—

(a) discloge infbrmation given to you in confidence by anyone, or information acquired by
you which you believe, or ought reasonebly to be aware, i3 of a confidential nature,
except where—

(i) you have the congent of a bersm authorised to give it;
(i) wou are reguired by law to do #o;

(i) the disclosure is made to a third party for the purposs of obigining professional
advice provided that the third party agrees not to disclose the information to any
other person; or

{iv) the disclosore is—
{aa) reasomable and in the public interest, and

(bb) mads in good fuith and in compliarce with the reasonable requirements of tha
authority; or

(b} prevent another persom from gaining access to information to which that persom is entitled
by law.

5 ¥ ou must not conduct yourself in 4 manner which could reasonably be regarded as bringing
your office or authority into disrepute.

6. You—

(4) mmust mot wse or atternpt to use your position as a member improperly to confer on or
secure for yourself or any other person, an advantage or disadvantage; and

by must, when vaing or authorising the use by others of the resources of your authoriip—

{a) 2006 6,2

Page 27



{x) any land where the landlord is your authority and you are, or & firm in which you are
i partner, & company of which you are a remuaerated director, or a person or body of
the description specified in paragraph (vi) is, the tepant;

(1) any land in the authority's ares for which vou have a licence (alone or jointly with
others) to occupy for 28 days or longer; or

{b} & deciston in relefion to that business mig]it Teasonably be regarded as affecting your
well-being or financial position or the well-being or fmagcial position of & relevant
persan to a preater extent than the majority of—

(1) (in the case of authorities with electoral divisions or wards) other couneil kax payers,

ratepayers or inhabitants of the electoral division or ward, as the case may be,
affected by the decision, .

{if) (io the case of the Greater London Authority) other council tax payers, Iatepayers or
inhabitants of the Assembly constituency affected by the deeision; or

(i} {in all other ceses) other council tax péyers, ratepayers or inhabitants of your
authorify’s area.

(£} In ab-paragraph (1)(b), a relevant person js—
(a) a member of your family or any person with whom you have a close esgociation; or

{b) any person or bedy who employs or has appointed such persons, any firn in Which they
arg a pariner, or any company of which they are directors;

(v any person or body in whom such persons have e beneficfal interest in & class of
secwritics excesding the nominal value of £25,000; or

(d) any body of a type described in sub-paragraph (1)(a)(1) or {ii).

Disclosure of personal interests

9.—(1) Subject to sub-paragraphs (2) to (7), where you have a personal inferest in any business
of your euthority and yon attend & meeting of your authority at which the business is congiderad,
you raust disclose to that mesting the existence and nature of that interest at fhe commencement of
that consideration, or when the interest becomes apparent.

(2) Where you have a personal inferest in any busingss of your awthority which relates to or iz
likely to affect a person described in paragraph 8(1)(a)(i) or 8(1)(2) (ii¥az}, you need enly disclose
to the meeting the existence and pature of that interest when you address the meeting on that
business. '

(3) Where you have a personel interest in any business of the authority of the type memioned in
pacagraph B(1)(a)viii), you need not disclose the nature or existence of that interest to the roesting
if the interest was registered more than three years before the date of the meeting.

(4} Sub-paragraph (1) only applies where you are aware or ovght reasonably fo be aware of the
existence of the personal interest,

(5) Where you have a personal intersst but, by virtue of paragraph 14, sensitive information
relating to it is not repistered in your authority's register of members’ interests, vou must indicate

to the meeting that you have a personal interest, but need not disclose the sengitive information to
the meeting,

(6) Subject fo paragraph 12(1)(b), where you have a personal interest in any business of your
authority and you have made an exeontive decision io relation to that biisiness, you st ensure
that any written statement of that decision records the existence and nature of that interest

(7) In this paragraph, “executive decision” is to ba constrned in accordance with any regulations
made by the Secretary of State under section 22 of the Local Government Act 2000{z),

(@) See the Lacal Andierities {Executive Arragements) (Acttss o Tnfbrmation) (Bagland) Regulefians (5.1 20003272).

Page 28




angwering questions or giving evidence relating to the business, provided that the public are also
allowed to attend the meeting for the same purpose, whether under a statutory right or otherwise.,

Part 3
Eegistration of Members’ Interests

Registratlon of members® interests

¥3,—(1) Subject fo paragraph 14, you must, within 28 days of—
fa) this Code belng adopted by or applied to your autharity; og
{b) your ¢lection or sppointment to office (where that is later),

register in your authority’s register of members’ interests (muintained under section 81(1) of the
Local Govermnent Aet 20000 details of your personal interests where they fall within e category
mentioned in paragraph 8{1)(z), by providing written notification to your authority’s monitoring
officer.

(2) Bubject fo paragraph 14, you must, within 2§ days of beconiing aware of any new peisonal
interest or change to any personal interest registered uhder parapraph (13, yepister details of that

new personal nterest or change by providing written notification to your authority®s monitoring
ofiicer.

Senslfive information

14—(1) Where you consider that the jnformation relating to any of your personal interests is
sensitive inforration, and your authority’s monitoring officer agrees, you need not include that
mformation when regisiering that interest, or, as the case may be, a change to that inferest vader
paragraph 13

- {2) You must, within 28 days of becoming awsre of any changs of circumstances which means
that information excluded under parapraph (1) is ne longer sensitive information, notify your
emthority’s monitoring oificer asking that the information be included in your authority’s register
of members” interests.

(3) In this Code, “sensitive informeation” means information whose availability for inspection by
the public: creates, or is likely to create, 4 serious risk fhat you or a person who lives with you may
be subjected to violence or intimidation,

Page 29




Paragraph 4 of the Code provides that members must nat without consent disclose confidentizl
information they have acquired and noust not prevent others flom paiming aceess to information to
which they are entitled. '

Paragraph 5 of the Code provides that & member mnst not conduct hireself or herself in a
manner which conld bring his or her authority into disrepute. :

Paragraph 6 of the Code provides that a member nust not use his or ber position improperly to -
gain an advantage or confer a disadvantage and that when wsing or authorising the use of the
authority’s resources, he or she mmst aet in accordance wifh the authority’s reasomable
tequirements, must not permit those resources ta be nsed for political purposes and roust have
regard to the Local Authority Code of Publicity,

Paragraph 7 of the Code provides that a member must have regard to advice given by the chisf
finance officer end monitoring officer and st Eive rersons for decisions made.

Paxagraph 8 of the Code provides a list of matters which consfitute a personal interest,

Paragraph 9 of the Code provides that generslly 3 member with a personal interest in any
business of hig or her anthority must discloge thet interest at any meeting at which the business js
congidered.

Paragraph 10 of the Code provides that generally a member with & personal interest also has a
prejudicial interest if the inferest could be regarded by a member of the public as so significant
that it is likely to prejudice his or her judgement of the public interest. The paragraph provides that
in specified clicunstances @ member may regard himself ax not having a prejudieial intersst,

Paragraph 11 of the Code provides that & member who was mvolved in making a decision or
taking action on a matter mmst net he involved in the overview and scrutiny committes’s
considecstion of that deefsion or actien.

Faragraph 12 of the Code provides that & member with a prejudicial interest must, unless, for
exarople, he or she is making reprasentations and members of the public &re also allowed to make
representations on that matter, or he or she has obfained & dispensation, withdraw from any
meetings at which the businees is being considered, snd must not improperly influence decisions
in relation to the business,

Paragraph 13 of the Code provides that a member must notify the mondtoring officer of his or
ber personal interests and any change to those interests roust alao be notified,

Paragraph 14 of the Code provides that a member may notify the monitoring officer of any
ssnditive information the avaflability of which to the public creates, or is likely to creats, a serious
nigk that the member or & person who lives ‘with hirz or her mayg be subjected to violence or
intimidation. '

Page 30




Masatlhg Notas

Reference; Local [nvestigation ref 14/08

Date of meeting: 3™ June 2009

Attendees: Mrs Deborah Warren {Senijor Solicitor and Deputy Monitoring Officear)
and Vanessa Brown ((nvestigating Officer)

Purpose: to establish the process used to collate the Register of Interest forims
for Parish Councillors,

Meeting notes recorded by Vanessa Brown

The following matters were discussed:-

1.

Mrs. Warren confirmed that it is only in the last 2 years that requests have
heen made of Parish Councils to send their Register of [nterest forms and

a copy of their Code of Conduct to the Monitoring Officaer. Up until this time

ho such records were kepl at the Council House office.

In 2007 a new Code of Conduct was introduced and each Parish Council
was required t¢ adopt the new Code. A copy of the adopted Code of
Conduct and the Register of Interest forms were requested from the
Parish Councils to enable a central record to be kept by the Monitoring
Officer.

Mrs Warren also confirmed that whilst there was no set format far the
Register of Interest forms, she provided the Parish Councils with a blank
copy of the form used by District Councillors for the Parish Clerk {0 use
should they wish.

The Register of Interest forms would be made available to the Parish
Councillors by the Parish Clerk.

It is the responsibility of all Councillors to ensure they have completed the
Register of Interest form and submitted it to the Monitoring Officer within
the statutory time limit.

Parish Councillors' Register of Interest forms were either received directly

from the Parish Councilior or would be sent to the Monitoring Officer via
the Parish Clerk.

Page 31



7. It is now general practice for Parish Clerks te ba notified that completed
Register of Interests forms have been received by the Monitaring Officer.
If required a copy would be forwarded o the Parish Clerk, to be retained
with the Parish Councils records.

8. Mrs Warren was able fo confirm that on the 8" September 2008 she
recaived an email from the Parish Clark to Catshill & North Marlbrook
Parish Counci! saying that she was missing Register of Interest form for
two of the Parish Councillors and aszking if they could he writien to
requesting the completed forms. Mrs Warren confirmed that she would
write to the relevant Parish Councillors as requested.

8. The same day Mrs. Warren sent a [etter to both Councillors, {one of whom
was Councillor Carter), enclosing a Register of Interests form and
requesting that it be completed and refurned as soon as possible. Mrs.
Warren's letter also stated that there was a statutory requirement that the
form should have been completed within 28 days of the adeption of the
new Code of Conduct and that by failing fo do so this amounted to a
breach of the code of conduct.

10.0n the 13" October 2008 the Parish Clerk for Catshill & North Marlbrook
emailed Mrs. Warren asking whether the two outstanding forms had been
received. :

11. Mrs. Warren responded canfirming the details of those she had received
and also that she thought she may have received the two outstanding
farms and that she would check her records to verify the position.

12.A check of the records confirmed the Register of Inierest form for both
councillors remained outstanding.

13. Mrs. Warren received a further letter from the Parish Clerk in which she
gaid sha had seen Councillor Carter at 2 meeting and he mentioned that
he had not signed his form. The letter further confirmed that the Parish
Clerk had spoken to the Staridards Board for England who had advised
that the Parish Council could be held potentially responsible for the
migsing R of | forms.

14.1n the same letter the Parish Clerk asked Mrs Warren if she could again
contact Gouncillor Carter to complete and return the Register of Interest
Form.

15.0n the 9" December 2008 Mrs. Warren sent a further letter to Councillor

Carter reguesting the compleied Register of Inferests form. A copy of the
letter was also forwarded to the Parish Clerk.

Page 32




16.0n the 15" December 2008 Mrs. Warren received an email form the
Parish Clerk as the outstanding Register of Interests form had still not
been received. The email confirmed that the Parish Clerk had refarred the
matter to the Monitoring Officer.

17. Mrs. Warren confirmed that she had seen the lefter from the Parish Clerk
of the 15 December 2008 addressed to the Monitoring Officer in which
the Parish Clerk asked for the Monitoring Officer to take action to resolve
the difficulty with the outstanding Register of Interest Forms.

18.Mrs. Warren was able to confirm that on the 3" February 2009 a

completed Register of Interests form was received from Councillor Carter,

[, Deborah Warren, Senior Solicitor and Deputy Monitoring Officer confirm that |
have read the above and agree it is an accurate note of the discussions that took
place on the B™ June 2008.

Dated... :
Dehorah Warren {Senmr Sﬂhmt-:-r and Deputy Mnnltcnng focer}

Vanessa Brown (Investigating Officer)

Page 33




AFFEV‘IO'I‘\'& - .

Meeting Notes

Referenca: Local Investigation raf 14/08

Date of meeting: 21% May 2009

Altendees: Ms Gill Lungley, {Clerk to Catshill & North Marlbrook Parish Council)
and Vanessa Brown (Investigating Officer)

Purpoze: o establish the background . information and details surrounding

Councillor Carfer’s alleged fallure to complete and return a Register of Interasts
Form.

Meeting notes recorded by Vanessa Brown

The following matters were discussed:-

1. Ms. Lungley confirmed that the parish of Catshill and North Marlbrook has
a toial of thirteen Councillors and that she has been the Parish Clerk for
just aver twelve months.

2. The new Code of Conduct was introduced in 2007 {befare Ms. Lungley
was tha Parish Clerk), and from minufes taken at a meeting in Oclober
2007 Ms. Lungley was abkle fo confirm that guidance copies of the Code
were distributed to the Parish Councillors although there did not appear to
be any recorded minutes that the full Code of Conduct was adopted. It
was a requirement that if by November 2007 any Parish Councils had not
acted to adopt the revised Code of Conduct and had not advised the
Standards Board for England {(SBE), of their decision then the SBE would
assume they had adopted the default version of the Code which excluded

paragraph 12 (2} relating to “Effect of Prejudicial Interests on
Participation”. )

3. The adoption of the Code of Conduct to either include or exclude
paragraph 12 (2) was placed on the agenda for the meeting on the 26"
June 2008 held at Catshill Village Hall. A copy of the agenda has been

provided, and at Agenda item 8, it clearly identifies the issues for
discussion.

4. The agenda also included a separate paragraph under the same agenda
item fo specifically require Parish Councillors to complete a new Register
of Interests form fo comply with the new Code of Conduct. Additionally
Parish Gounciliors were reminded of the consequences of failing to

comply with this requirement and a blank Register of Interests forim was
attached for completion.

Page 34




5. Ms. Lungley also provided Mrs. Brown with a copy of the minutes of the
June 2008 meeting in which it confirmed that the Parish Councillors
agreed that the revised (2007) Members' Code of Conduct with paragraph
12(2) should be adopted. Speciiic reference was also made to Parish
Councillors being reminded of the need to complete their new Register of
Interests forms.

6. The minutes confirmed that Councillor Carter was present at the June
2008 meetling and alsc that he had made a Declarafion of Interest. Ms.
Lungley advised that Councillor Carter always made the same declaration
at the beginning of all meatings that he was a member of NWWA which is
a charitable organisation.

f. Ms. Lungley confirmed that she would make available the blank Register
of Interest forms and the Parish Councillors would either return the form to
“her and she would forward it fo the tMonitoring Officer or the Parish
Counillor would send the form directly to the Monitoring Officer. In the
case of the lafter the Parish Clerk would have no knowledge of the form
being complated.

g. Ms. Lungley was able to confirm that when she became the Parish Clerk
thers was only a copy of the Register of Interests farms for those Parish
Councillors who had completed their forms and had returned them fo the
Monitoring Officer via the Parish Clerk. Councillor Carters form did not
appear in the records held at that time.

9. As the obligation to complete the Register of Interests form rests entirely
with the Parish Councillors and as they could be sent directly to the
Monitoring Officer any records kept by the Parish Clerk may be
incomplete. The Monitoring Officer did not provided detalls of the
completed forms to the Parish Clerk.

10. Whilst there s no requirement for the Parish Clerk to retain a resord of the
Register of Interest forms Ms. Lungley confirms that towards the end of
2008 she approached the Deputy Monitoring Officer to establish which of
the Register of Interest forms had been received and which remained
outstanding. Ms. Lungley's enquires revealed that two of the Parish
Councillors had yet to submit their Register of Interest forms. The Deputy
Monitoring Officer confirmed that she would write to the two Parish
Councillors to request their complated forms.

Page 35




11.tn November 2008 Ms. Lungley also wrote to Councillar Carter sending
him another blank form for completion. A short time later Ms. Lungley saw
Councillor Carter and asked if ha had completed and submitted his
Register of Interests Form. He confirmed that he had "not got round to it",
and declined a further blank form stating he still had the previous one.

12.In the minutes of the meeling of the 26" June 2008, there is a note of
Parish Councillors training. Ms. Lungley confirms that one source of
training is available via the Local Council Service which is an independent
organisation. Ms. Lungley is not aware of any training offered via the
Bromsgrove District Cauncil for Parish Councillors and specifically she is
not aware of any offer of training on the new Code of Conduct.

13.As a Parish Councillor, Ms. Lungley describes Councillor Carter as an
active member who willingly participates in all aspects of parish council
work. Specifically he attends Planning and Events meetings and has a
good working knowledge of the area and is genuinely interested in the
community and supportive of the work undertaken by the Parish Council.

Ms. Lungley provided a copy of the following documents:-

+ Copy Agenda for the meeting held on the 26% June 2008,
+ Copy Minutes following on from the meeting of the 26™ June 2008,

l, Gill Lungley, Clerk for Catshilt and North Marlbrook Parish Counct! confirm that
| have read the above and agree it is an accurate note of the discussions that
took place on the 21% May 2009,

Dated... /2 0 - 20077

Gill Lungley.
{Parish CI

Dated.... 0.0 & Koo

Vanessa Brown (Investigating Officer)

Page 36




r

Ps PP E:nof s 4 FIJ

CATSHILL AND NORTH MARLBROOK PARISH COUNCIL

fapers included with this Agenda:

Minutes of Annual Parish Meaeting held 28/05/08

Minutes of Annual Parlsh Council Masting held 29/05/08

Minuies of Planning Committes mestings hald 29/05/08 and 12/06/08

Copy of e-mall from Pat Edwards, LCS ragarding councillor training {aganda item 11}
Copy of Communlty Transpaort Review {sgenda [tam 12]

s List of correspondence received via post and e-mall not otherwise included in the meeting

® = & & B

¢ Farthose for whom no Reglster of Interasts form has been lodged with BDC, a blank copy for completion

Papers to follow:

s« Tha minutes of the Environment & Highways group meeting on 25" fune to be circulated via e-mall in
advance of the parish councll mesting, with paper coples avallable at that mesting.

Agenda ltem 8 : Members' Cade of Conduct

& revised Code of Conduct was Intraduced last year and guldance coples Issued by the $tendards Board for England
(SBE) were distributed to members durlng the October 2007 meeting {minute no. 80/07(d}). If by Novembar 2007
Farish Councils had not acted fo adopt the revised coda and had not advised the SBE of thelr declsion, then the SBE
would assume the council bad adopted the default version of the coda s WITHOUT the adopticn of paragraph 12,
sub-paragraph 2.

As you know, Ifa member has a prefudicial Interest [n any business of the authorlty then that member must
withdraw from the meeting whilst that business Is dlscussed. However, para 12 —{2) states that "Where you have a
prejudicial interest in any business of your authority, you may attand a mesting .. but only for the purpose of
maklng rapresentatlons, answering questions or plving evidence relating to the business, provided that the public
are also allowed to attend tha meating for the same purpose, wheather under 2 statutory right or otharwise. The
rnamber 15 required to withdraw immedlately after making representations, answerlng questions or giving evidence,
hefora there Is any further discussion of the business. The mamber will rejoin tha mesting upon conelusion of any
dizeusslon on the matter,

This Information was not made known to members at the fime, and the Councll |s now asked to conslder whather ta
adopt the revised Code of Conduct with or without para 12-[2].

Additianally members were required ta complete a new Regisier of Interesis form at the same time to comply with
the conditions of the Ravlsed [2007) Code, despite having alveady completed one only a few months earler. These
farms are retained at Bromsgrove Distriet Council and can be viewed by any member of the public wha so reguessts
to see them. BDEC have been [n touch recently asking for the Reglster of Interest farms, of which anly six have baen
fully completed by members of this parfsh counell.

A blank form Iz baing sent with thesaifapars {o those mambers who do not yet appear to have completad a form—
and apologlesto thase who racaive a form herewlth and have already completad one, however BOC do nat have
tham on record. If BDC do not receive these forms they are obliged to inform the local Standards Committee, who
will be obligad to bar such a member from office.

b

v Recognlse the req ulra;'nants of the revised Code of Conduct;
+  Decide which varsian of the revised Code to adopt {le with or without para 12-(2])
¢ Complete the Register of Inferests form if not already held by BDC,

Cxqtshlll & North Marlbrock Parlsh Cauncll, Catshill Village Hall, Golden Cross Lane, Catshill B61 012
Tel: 07813 671299 J e-mall; clerk@ catshillandnorthmanbook-pe.gov.uk

Page 37



CATSHILL AND NORTH MARLEROOK PARISH COUNCIL
PARISH COUNCIL MEETING HELD THURSDAY 26™ JUNE 2008, 7.30PM
CATSHILL VILLAGE HALL, GOLDEN CROSS LANE, CATSHILL

Present: Clirs G Witcomb {Chairman), P Masters (Vice-Chairman}

G Blackmoor {arrived #, U Carter, M Knight, A Pugh, M Shepheard, M Tingle {arrived *)

In attendance ! Clerk, G Lungley

08/021

08/022

05/023

08/024

08/025

08/026

08/027

Cat

Apoclogies
Apaclogies for absence were accepted from Clir P Baker {persanal), 3 Brown (holiday)

Declarations of Interast Cllr D Carter - member of NWWA

Adiourhmment of Meeiing for Open Forum

Polrts of discusslon as atéached. (*# Clirs Tingte and Blackmaor arrived)

Approval of minutes of previous mesting

The minutes of the Annhual Parish Council meeting held 29/05/2008 were amended to show:
min no. 087005 : Cllr © Carter, declared interest as member of NWWA

min no. 08/007 : Enviranment & Hlighways Committee to include Clir G Blackmoor;

min no. 08/013 ; Re removal of BT payphones, add - from ‘adjacent to’ this parish -; and were
approved. ' :

Chairman’s Report

As attached

Questions from councillors

None put forward

Committee / Group / Representation Reports

a) Flnance Committee: Mo report

b) Planning Committee: Meeting held 12/06/08 had constdered the latest notifications
Including the application for change of use from retail to restaurant & take-away at 129/131
Golden Cross Lane and had submitted comments to the Planning Authority. Also advice
received from BDC relating to temporary reduction of Planning Enforcement Officers.

¢) Envlronment & Highways. As per minutes 23/06/08, including Judging of hanging
baskets/containers to take place week commenclng 14/07/2008 by M, AP, GW.; the horse
course balancing pools are deslgned to work unaided; drainage improvements have taken
place in Wildmoor Lane and by the War Memorial; the Lengthsman scheme to be reviewed,

d) Youth Group: No report

&} Personnel: Noreport

fi  Website & IT Support: FM — many improvements to the website with e-mail situation
having been sorted and the draft Parish Plan now down-loadablie as PDF; the latest minutes
are to be uploaded; What's On has been updated; hanging basket competition and Fun Day
publicized. PM to call a meeting re: host provider for website.

shill & Marth Maribrook Partsh Councll, minutes 2008, page - 11 -
II'-J"age 3

8




.:. | f. 08/028

g) Parish Plan Group: The draft plan had been printed and distributed at the Fun Day; follow-
up sessions will be held at the Village Hall on Saturdays 20™ and 27" September.

h) Fun Day: The annuzl Fun Day was held 21/06/08; this council’s stall includad the draft
Parish Flan, energy conservation representative & samples, sales for duck race {funds to
NWWA), leafieis relating to health and safety + free glve-aways in enviranmentally friendly
bags and refreshments: members agread it went well despite poor weather,

Il Warcs CALC Bromsgrova Areas Committeg, 04/06/08: GW and GLattended.

|l Bromsgrove Parlsh Forum, 24/06/08: GW and GL attended, included a presentation an
‘Smarktwater’, a burglary deterrent, [twas agreed to include this on the next agenda.

Members' Code of Conduct

It was agreed to adopt the revised (2007) Members' Coda of Conduct with paragraph 12(2)
which allows council members with a prejudicial interest the same rights as members of the
puhblic to speak on the subject in which they have an interest before withdrawlng from the
mesting.

The members who had yet to complete thelr form relating to the Register of Interests were

( reminded to do so.
08/029  Co-opflon of members
It was agreed to co-opt Mrs A Glendenning to the Catshili Ward.
A notice for the Marlbrook Ward notice board would invite applicants for co-option.
0B/030  Committee / group structure
It was agreed as fallows:
a} retain the existing Finance and Planning Commmittees;
bl convert the existing Environment & Highways, Personnel, and Appeals groups into Parish
Councll commlttess;
¢} retain the Website and IT _Support Warking Party, to meet when necessary and liaise regularly
with the council administration;
{ d] encourage the setting up of an Independent Youth group, with the parish councll-appointed
members providing updatas to the parish council when appropriate;
e}l support the establishment of an independent Parish Plans Group, with start-up funding,
publicity, grant-ald atc. whilst retaining the intention to adopt the Plan an completion;
fI consider the setting up of ad hoc working parties as and when reguired, with ctear guidelines,
for the purpose of research, or completion of a speclfic parlsh council project, working through
the councll administration;
g] establish an Events Committee;
h] review the Terms of Reference of all the above.
08/031  Councllior Tralnlng
[t was agreed to take up the offer of training vla Local Councll Services, but at some timea in
September, not July. Other parish councils would ke lnvited to attend.
Catshlll & North Marlbrook Parlsh Council, minutes 2008, page-12 -

Page 39




08/032

08/033

08/034

08/035

Comtmunlty Transport Review

BDC's review of community transport provision was completed, with preference expressed for
the option of an independent body providing facillties such as dial-a-ride; strong support for
public transport/community transport links between the parish and Bromsgrove railway station
{or nearest railway station} and also between Catshill & North Marlbrook and Redditch Hospltal,

Finance Report and bills for payment
The report, incfuding bills for payment, was approved.

Members were notified of the new mileage rates for travelling allowances 2008/09, as advisad
by BDC,

Items for consideration at next mesting not already ment|oned

For consideration by Parish Plan Group - to ensure the histortc nature of the parish is clearly
outlined, eg reference to nail-makers’ cottages,

Date and time of next meeting

The next Parlsh Council meeting will be held on Thursday ._.f'.l“".lullg..r 2008 at 7.30pm.

This meeting ended at 9.30pm

B et s st rr e R e ra s e e et eneeet s e et 1 e ebe e et s e s eree e e s Bate e
Chairman of Catshili & North Marlbrook Parish Council 31 July 2008
Catshill & Narth Mar(brook Parish Council, minutes 2008, page - 13 -

Page 40




H?perd‘\r. &

Your Ref:
Our Ref; Dy

If te!ep'huning pleass ask for
Debbie Warren (01527} 851609
Email: d.warren@bromsgrove.gov.uk

Counciller D Carter

6 September 2008

Dear Councillor Carter,

Register of Interests Form

It has been brought to my notice that you have not yet completed a Register
of Intarests form following the adoption last year of the new Code of Conduct
by Catshill & North Marlbrock Parish Council.

May | remind you that it is a statutory requirement that all councillors complete
a Register of Interests form within 28 days of the adaoption of the new Cods,
and that not doing so amounts to a breach of the Code of Conduct.

| enclose a copy of a form and would be grateful if you would please complete
it and return it to either me or to your parish council clerk as soon as possible.

Yours sincerely,

* Deborah Warren
Deputy Monitoring Officer

Page 41




o

Your Ref:
Our Ref: Dy

If telephoning please ask for
Debbie Warren (01527) 881809
Email: d warren@bromsgrove.goy. uk

Councillor D Carter

8 September 2008

Dear Coungillar Carter,

Register of Interests Form

Further to my eariier leiter | enclose the form which was omitted,

Yours sincerely,

Deborah Warren
Deputy Monitoring Officer

Page 42




Your Raf:
our Ref. Dvyf
It telephoning please ask for

Debbie Warren {(01527) 881608
Email: d.warren@bromsgrove.qov.uk

Councillor D Carter

9 December 2008

Dear Councillor Carter, -

Register of Interests Form

| wrote fo you in September asking you fo complete a Register of Interests
form. | have no record of having received this, and | would be grateful if you
could complete the enclosed form and return it to your Parish Couneil Clerk,

[t is possible that your form was received here but misplaced, and if that was
the case | apologise for asking you to complete this form again.

Yours sincerely,

Dehorah Warren
Deputy Monitoring Officer

Page 43




Your Ref:
Cur Ref: CF

If telephoning please ask for
Claire Felton {01527) 83142¢ :
Email: c.felton@bromsarove.gov.uk - ’

Councillor D Carter

& January 2009

Dear Councillor Carter
Register of Inferests Form

Further to Deborah Warren's letter to you of 8 December 2008, | note that the
Council has still not received a completed Register of Interests form.

As a Parish Gouncillor you are obliged to submit a completed forr to me as
Monitoring Officer and until you do so you are in breach of the Code of
Conduct.

In the circumstances | would be obliged if you collld arrange for the form to be
returned to me by return of post. '

If you require any advice or assistance please do not hesitate to contact me,

Yours sincerely

e

Claire Felton
Monitoring Cfficer

Page 44




Pppenchy. F

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

REGISTER OF MEMBERS’ INTERESTS

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 section 2101}
The Local Authorittes (Model Code of Conduct) Order 2007

+

Nofor  “Member” includes a co-opled member of an authority, Numbering
folfows numbering in Code of Conduct

|; (ft name) (capitals) Fbﬁz__éf @ ZJ».{E{“}ZC/‘ f CQ."LT(‘?-'L .

a Member of the Councll/co-opted Member of the Council fdeleto as appropriatal

GIVE_ NOTICE, as | am required to do under paragraph 13 of the Code of
Coriduct, that | have the following interests: '

~'fplease state "None” whera approptiate)

D Any body of which you are a member or ina position of general

control or management and to which you are appointed or
hominated hy your authority

NOTE: This will include, for exampls, outside body appoinfments by the Councit

GWoE ! GuATY BAS of ) Atow

(i Any body =
(2a) exercising functlons of a publle nature;
{bh) directed to charitable purposes; or .

{ce) one of whose princlpal purposes includes the Influence of
publle opinlon or policy (Including any polltical party or frade

union),

of which you are a member or in a position of general control or

managsment; ]
1

Page 45




NOTE:

fhb) Freemasonry — the Standards Board for England advice [s:-
Freemasons wWho are members of the Grand Charily must regisier mambership
of the Grand Charity in their Register of Members’ inferest. If an individual
lodge [s one which fas charffable stafus of could he described as a body
directed tawards chanffable purposes, then membership of that lotlge wauld
afso need to be registared.

fe) This will include membership of a palitical party as welf as. membership of any
pressure group or offler organisation which inclides fobbying as one of its

principal purposes.
s
L ' i
(Illy  Any employment or business carried on by you: |

NOTE:
Give a short description of every employntent, office, trade, profession or vocalion that
you have to declars for income tax plitposes, for example "Efasrerer” of "Wurse”

S5 T M AedL

1{h) Any person ot body who employs or has appointed you;

NOTE:

if you are an emiployes, you should give the name of your employer. if erploved by 8

company, give the name of the cofpany paying your wages or salary, not that of the

vliimeate holding compary. Where you hold an office, give the hame of the person or

body which appointed you. IN the case of a public office, this will be the authority which

\ pays you. In the case of a feacher in & malntained school, the local education atthority,
in the caze of an aided school, the school’s governing body '

) ~
EilnTEA,. O eE Tubaeiufs STF

Page 46




{v) Any person or hody, other than a relevant authority, who has made
a payment to you in respect of your electlon or any expenses
Incurred by you In carrylng out your duties;

MNOTE:

You shoultd daclare the name of any person(s} who has/have mada any paymants to you

fowards your expenses as a councilior or fowards your alactlon expenses. You do not

naad to declare the amounts of any payments: only the name of the person or body
making them,

Your do nof need {o include payment of Members' allowances by Bromsgrove District
Counclf

ey

(vi) Any person or body who has a place of business orland in your
authority’s area and In whom you have a heneflelal interest in a
class of securities of that persan or body that exceeds the hominal
value of £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share capital
(whichever is the lower); )

NOTE:

"Porson or body” Includes firms, parinerships, companies and other organisations.
Name the person or body. '

2, You do nof need ic show the actual amount of your benaficlal inferest.

Flease note that tha nominal value is the valte on the face of tha securtty and
not its vatue at tha fime acquired nor its current market value.

3 It there are severaf cfasses of shares or securifies, the fraction of 17100
applies to any of those classes. These fimits also apply to daposiis with
industial and provident societles, and co-operafive societias. _

4. The requirement afso covers shares and securitios held in the name of other
people In which you have a beneficfaf inferest

| N I PPN

iy

Page 47




(vil)  Any contract for goods, services or works made between your
authority and you or a firm In which you are a partner, a company
of which you are a remunerated director, or a person or body of the
description specified In paragraph (vi);

NOTE!

Yau need not say what the financfal arrangements ars, but should state briefly the
Canfractor, what the Contract is and for hiow fong.

PR

{vii) The Interest of any person from whom you have received a gift or L
haspitallty with an estimated vaiue of at jeast £25.

WOTE:

You must register any gifts or hospitafity worth £25 or over that you racelve In
connection With your ofiicial dutfes as & Member, and fhe souvrce of the giff or hospitality.
(An accumulation of small gifts recefved over a short petiod that add up fo £25 orover
shoifd also be registered).

You automatically have a personal interest in a matter under consideration If it Is likefy fo
affect a person wha gave you a gift or hospitalffy that is registered. If that Is the case,
you must declare at the meeting the existence and nature of the gift or haspitalify, the
parson who gave if fo you and fow the business under consideration refates to that
parsos.

Once three years have passed since your-registerad the gift or hospitality in your

Registar of Inferest, you obligation to disciose that inferest fo any refevant meefing
ceases.

M1 B

() Any land in your authority's area In which you have a beneflcial N
interest;

MOTE:

1. You shauld fnclude any fand In the Council's area In which you have a heneficial
intarast (that is, in which you have sone proprictaty inferest for your own
benefit). You shotid give the address or a brief description fo fdentify . If you
live in the Council’s area you should include your home ynder this heading as
ownar, lesseo ortenant.” - -

2. You should also include any property from which you recéive reni, or of Wiich J
- .

"4
Page 48




you ara the morigages.

3 “‘Land” includes any buitdings or parts of buildings (and eq. affotments).

4, When the information fo be recordad relates to a house or fat, this doss not
present any difficully in providing an address. Howaver, the ragistration of other
fand Interests such as farm fand, or other land with no address, fs not as easy, In
these clrcumstances you should include enough information with this form so that
fandhofdings can be identifiad feg. a map should bs attachied to the form)

4.4 ST TILE ol
{ASTSoA fpA

MM gl

(%) Any land where the [andlord is your authority and you are, or a firm
In which you are a partner, a company of which you are a
remunerated director, or a person or hody of the description
specified In paragraph (vi) is, the tenant:

NDTE: '
‘Land" includes any buifdings or parts of bulldings (attach a map if appropriata)

Pl B s

{xi) Any land in the authority’s area for which you havs a licence {alone
or jointly with others) to occupy for 28 days or longer;
MOTE:
1. You showld incltide land In the Gouncit's area which you frave a right fo oceupy or

use, but neffher own nor have a ferrancy of. You shoutd give the address or a
bitef description to identify it

|2 "Land” includas any buildings or parts of buildings (affach & map if appropriste)

MIE

5
Page 49




FURTHER_INTERESTS

Note: Numbering doss nof relate fo the Code of Conduct

| further VOLUNTARILY GIVE NOTICE {acknowledging that | am not required to

do so under the Code) of the following other interests (please state “None" where |
appropriate). -

{(a) | am a member or hold a position of general control or management L
of the following private clubs or organisatlons

(b) | have the following other interest that | deslre to bring to the publlc’s
attentlon through the Register '

OTHER

Sensitive Interests under paragraph 14 of the Code of Conduct - seek ihe
advice of the Manitoring Officer

MEMBER'S SIGNATURE

Date

?_c'ﬁ [ L {i@,oa\
Member's Name

= ; = L. ]
(Capitals — in full Eﬁﬂ; C@a 1 Cavrdy

&

Member's signature

Page 50




NOTIFICATION OF CHANGE OF GIRCUMSTANCES

A Member must, withln 28 days of becoming aware of any change to the
inferesis speclfied above, provide wrltten notification to the Moenitoring
Offlcer of that change at the Council House, Burcot Lane, Bromsgrove B61
1AA

REGEIPT BY MONITORING OFFICER

Date received by the Gouncil

PR PP 9 2601

Signature of the Monltor ng Officer g .

Page 51




A Pecnal '\‘;«L

Bromsgrove District Council

Standards Assessment Sub-Committee

Decision Notice:
Referral for Investigation

Reference: 14/08 Councillor D Carter

This Decision Notice is sent to the person or persons making the
allegation, the Member agalhst whom the allegation was made and the
clerk to the parlsh council.

Complaint

On 20 February 2002 the Bromsgreve District Council Standards Assessment
Sub-Commiitee considered a complaint from the Clerk to Catshill and North
Marlbrook Parish Council concerning the alleged conduct of Councillor D
Carter, a Member of Catshill and North Matlbrook Parish Council.

A general summary of the complaint is that Councillor Carter has failed to
complete and refurn his Register of Interests form within the reguired 28 days

of the adoption of the new Code of Conduct by Catshill and Noith Marlbrook
Parish Coungil. '

Decision

In accordance with Section 57A{2) of the Local Government Act 2000, as
amended, the Standards Assessment Sub-Commiftes decided fo refer the
allegation to the Monitoring Officer for investigation.

Potential breaches of the Code of Conduct identified

'The Standards Assessment Sub-Committee identified the paragraphs of the
Code of Conduct which may apply to the alleged conduct as being:

= failing to regisfer interests

What happens now?

The complaint will be investigated by a person appointed by the Monitoring
Officer.

Tha Standards Board for England has published a guide fo the investigation
procass which is availablé on its website at

hitp://wirw. standardsboard.gov, uk/TheCodeofConduct/Guidance/Investigation
sffiledownload, 16685,en.pdf

Signed i e s e - Date e
Chairman of the Standards Assessment Sub-Commitiee

Page 52




Appendix H

Local Investigation ref:14/08

CHRONOLOGY
Date Description
October 2007 At a meeting of the Catshill and Narth Marlbrook Parish Council the
minutes show that a copy of the new Code of Conduct was distributed to
the councillors.
26™ Tune At a parish council meeting held on the 26™ June 2008 the Parish Council
2008 resolved to adopt the full version of the new Code of Conduct, The

minutes show that Councillor Carter was present at that meeting.

g September
2008

Parish Clerk coniacts the Deputy Monitoring Officer as there are two
outstanding Register of Interests forms.

The same day the Deputy Monitoring Officer sends a letter to Coungillor
Carter requesting a completed form.

MNovembei
2008

The Parish Clerk also writes to Covncillor Carter to complete the form.
At about the same time the Parish Clerk speaks to Councillor Carter who
confirms that he had not yet completed his form.

9" December
2008

The Deputy Monitoring Officer again writes to Councillor Carier to
request the completed form.

6" January The matter was referred to the Monitoring Officer who writes to
2000 Councillor Carter to request the completed form.

3rd Febryary | The completed Register of Tnterests Form was received by the
2009, Monitoring Officer on the 3 February 2009,

Page 53




T

&DF’EJ‘_‘IG{ |

SCHEDULE OF UNUSED MATERIAL

INVESTIGATION: ref 14/08

Item Description C‘bmment
number
i Routine emails and letters between the | Routine
Deputy Monitoring officer and the | correspondence that
Parish Clerk. Various dates, add nothing to the
' investigation,
ii Routine emails and letters between the “
Monitoring Officer and the Parish
Clerk. Various dates,

In the course of this investigation I have been provided with some
documents that I have considered but which do nof advance the
investigation. They are detailed above and can be made available if
requested.

Signed

Vanessa Brown ( Investigating Officer)

Page 54




Agenda ltem 5

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

11TH NOVEMBER 2009

MONITORING OFFICER’S REPORT

Responsible Portfolio Holder Councillor Geoff Denaro

Responsible Head of Service Claire Felton, Head of Legal, Equalities
and Democratic Services and
Monitoring Officer

Non-Key Decision

1. SUMMARY

1.1 The Standards Committee has requested the Monitoring Officer to report to
each meeting of the Standards Committee on a number of items, and this
report sets out the latest position in relation to key items.

1.2 Any further updates will be reported on orally at the meeting.

2. RECOMMENDATION

Members are requested to note the report and to comment on any aspects
of this as appropriate.

3. BACKGROUND

Member Investigations and Associated Matters

3.1 The final determination of the complaint considered by the Standards
Committee at its last meeting will be considered by the Committee at this
meeting.

3.2 Two related complaints in relation to which the Assessment Sub-Committee
decided to take no further action were reviewed by the Review Sub-
Committee on 13 October 2009 and a decision was reached to refer the
complaints to the Monitoring Officer for Other Action.

Complaints for Local Assessment

3.3 Since the last meeting of the Standards Committee 88 complaints have
been received all of which have been assessed by the Assessment Sub-
Committee. A table showing the cumulative totals is attached to this report
as Appendix 1. Requests for reviews of a number of those decisions have
been received but at the date of writing this report those reviews have not
been undertaken.

Page 55



3.4

3.5

7.1

7.2

Meeting with Standards for England

A meeting was held with Standards for England’s (SfE) Relationship
Manager and one of its investigators on 14 October 2009, and as a result
SfE have written confirming the outcome of the meeting. A copy of that
letter is attached to this report as Appendix 2 for the Committee’s
consideration.

Standards for England’s Annual Review

Standards for England has published its Annual Review. This is available
on its website at:
http://www.standardsforengland.gov.uk/media/Annual%20Review%202008-
09.pdf

Bromsgrove District Council features in this Review as a case study of good
practice. A copy of the feature is attached to this report as Appendix 3.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The Local Government Act 2000 introduced primary legislation to enable the
implementation of a Members’ Code of Conduct, and this was amended by
the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 insofar as
it related to the application of the Members’ Code of Conduct to their private
lives. Further details have been provided by the Local Authorities (Model
Code of Conduct) Order 2007 and the Relevant Authorities (General
Principles) Order 2001. The local assessment regime was introduced by
the LGPIHA 2007, and further expanded in the Standards Committee
(England) Regulations 2008 which also set out the rules and procedures
governing the investigation and determination of complaints.

COUNCIL OBJECTIVES

This item does not link directly with any Council objectives.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The main risk associated with the details included in this report is:

e Risk of challenge to Council decisions; and
e Risk of complaints about elected members.

These risks are being managed as follows:
¢ Risk Register: Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services

Key Objective Ref No: 3
Key Objective: Effective ethical governance

Page 56



8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS

None

EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

None

10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

None

11. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Procurement Issues None
Personnel Implications None
Governance/Performance Management None
Community Safety including Section 17 of | None
Crime and Disorder Act 1998

Policy None
Environmental None

12. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT

Portfolio Holder No
Chief Executive No
Executive Director - Partnerships and Projects | No
Executive Director - Services No
Assistant Chief Executive No
Head of Service Yes
Head of Financial Services No

Page 57




Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic

Yes

Services
Head of Organisational Development & HR No
Corporate Procurement Team No

13. WARDS AFFECTED
All wards

14. APPENDICES

Appendix 1 Local Assessment Statistics

Appendix 2 Letter from Standards for England
Appendix 3  Standards for England Annual Review 2008/09 - Bromsgrove

District Council Case Study

15. BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

CONTACT OFFICER

Name: Claire Felton and Debbie Warren
E Mail: c.felton@bromsgrove.gov.uk and d.warren@bromsgrove.gov.uk
Tel: (01527) 881429 and (01527) 881609

Page 58




"JONpuU0) JO 8P0D 8y} MOJ|0} 0} Jaquial 198lgng ay) jo ped ayj uo
aIn|ie} Ou Usaq pey diay) Jey) 8sed yoes ul Buipuly s,J90I0 splepuels [edlyig sy} sem )| uolebisaaul oy pajdedoe aiam pue|bu3 Joj spIepuelS O} palIajel sased G IV -
‘pale|dwod aq 0} 194 ale suonebisaaul Bululewal ay |
'600Z J9qWISAON U} | U0 d8ilwo) splepuels ay) Jo Buieaw ay) je aoe(d e} ||im uolebisaul [ed0] o) paiajal sjule|dwod 8y Jo | Jo uoheulwsalep [euly syl -
‘sjutejdwod [1ouno9 ysied g 03 uoneal ul JaoiO Buliojuoly 8y Ag pajejdwod aq o0} anp Ajjualind si pue Jaquialy 198lgng auo Ag pejejdwod usag sey uonoe Iayj0 ’
‘uayepapun uaaq 1aA 10U BABY SMBIASI U} UYDIUM IO} POAISOSI USa( SABY SUOISIOBP 98)IWW0)-qns
JUBWISSASSY JUadal JO MaIABI 10} s}sanbal Jo Jaquinu yy "UOoioe JBYJ0 J0} 1821 Buliojuoly 8y} 0} sjuie|dwod 8y} Jajal O} payoeal Sem UOISIOap B pue 9a)iuwo)-gns
MBIADY 8y} Aq pamaIAsI S1om UONDE JaULN) OU 8)E)} 0} PEPIOSP SBPWWOD-GNS JUSWSSSSSY B} YIIUM Joj Sjule|diod pajejal g U0 MaIASI Joj)sanbaly -
‘(sesodind [eonsiie)s Joj Juie|dwod | Se pajuNod usag Sey Yoiym) UOIJBIapISU0Ial 10} 99)ILUWO0D-gNS JUBWISSaSSY 8y} 0} Yoeq
Jajew ay) Jajal 0} pasn sem g0z suonejnbay (puejbug) sapiwwo) spiepuels ays jo (n)(e)(1)9l uonenbay Japun uonaiasip sJao1jO Bullojiuop ayl ases | uj z
‘(Jodau siyy jo uonesedaud Jo e1ep ayl) 600Z 1290100 0S 01 800Z ABIA Ul JUSWSSASSE |BD0| JO UOIIONPOJIUI By} 9oUIs polad ay} JoA0o pajielap sonshels ay | )

/8 6002 AINr 6z J0 Bunesw 1ouno) |In4 Bunassw Buunp Jnoianeyaq sjelidosddeul 0y Buijejal siajew snouep
L ssald |eoo| Ul Jaquis| palos|e Jayjoue jnoge sylewsal ajeudoiddeu
Z uoljewJo Ul |eljUBpLUOd JO 8INSolosIA
Z JBJ}9|SMBU [1I9UN0) ysiied ul bulieadde sajoie ajeudosddeu
G aaplwwo) Buluueld s,10uno0) 8y} Jo Buidaw e je suonjoe 03 buijejas Jnoineyaq ajeldoiddeul |esauas)
Mme| Aq pajnua si uosiad e co_c\@
L 0] UOIjewJOoUI 0} SS8298 Jo uonjuanald / uonisod jo asn Jadoidwi / ayndausip ojul 891440 1ybnouq :pauIquIoy,
4 SJ9211§0 |1oUN0Y Jo uoiepiwiul / Bulkjn
% ayndaJsip ojuI [1I9UNOD BY)/a910 JYBNOIG YDIYM JOUUBW B Ul PajoY |
l 108dsaJ yym SI1aylo jealy 0} ainjie4
(1onpuo) Jo 8po) ayy jo uondope Jo
Z sAep gz paJsinbal ulyym uinjal pue 819|dwod 0} ainjiey/||N} Ul 81ejoap 0} ain|ie}) s}saloju| ,SJaquisly Jo Josibay
sjulejdwod jo JaquinN sjulejdwod jo ainjeN
¢0 09 I € ¢Cl s <€ ¢C L0} jejol
uoijoe 1ayjo uoljoe
uonebiysaul 10} pa.Lidjal Jayuny ou
1o} pue|bug |/ uonoe | uonebysaaul | uonebiysaaul uoijoe uolnjoe passasse
suojeulwlialdp | ioj spaepuels Jayny |eosoj 10} |e20] J9Yj)0 J0j | Jayuny | pajonpuod | sjulejdwod
leuiq 0) pa.1d)oy ou juiop pPoli9jau JUIOf | 10 paLIDRY | po.Id)RYy ON SMIINDY jo JaquinN | ,pouad

| Xipuaddy SJljsijelS JUdWSSassy |ed0T



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60



Fourth Floor
Griffin House
40 Lever Street
Manchester
M1 1BB

Standards fi

Standards B

T 01618175300 ~

F 0161817 5499 T
Minicom 0161 817 5449
enquiries(dstandardsforengland.gov.uk
www.standardsforengland.gov.uk

Ms Claire Felton

Monitoring Officer
Bromsgrove District Council
The Council House
Bromsgrove

B60 1AA

23 October 2009

Dear Claire
SBE-07165-43728

Jonathan Wigmore and | enjoyed our visit to Bromsgrove last week. It was a
pleasure to meet you and your colleagues as well as Mr Burke and Councillor
Cypher. Thank you for making us so welcome and inviting us to stay for lunch.

We found it useful to review the political and ethical history of the authority and to
gain an appreciation of the issues facing the district. We acknowledge the
improvements that have been made since you took the helm as monitoring officer.
We have recognised this publicly in our annual review, and | hope this will
encourage you in your efforts. These have already borne fruit in raising
awareness of ethical standards as the springboard for effective community
leadership, and the appointment of a full-time ethical standards officer is an
impressive commitment. We congratulate you on what has been achieved.

We discussed the council meeting of 29 July 2009 and the cause and aftermath of
the events of that night. We are pleased to hear that the chief executive is in
touch with IDeA and that these matters are under discussion, and | do not think
that Standards for England should add to your regulatory burden in this respect. If
however you feel that we can help you either directly or by levering in appropriate
external support, please let me know.

or England is the new operating name mlF?age 61

oard for England. Visit our website to find out more



The assessment sub-committee that dealt with the 87 or so complaints appeared
to be well-prepared and administered. Part of our role is sharing good practice,
and | hope you would not object if we referred any other authority facing a similar
challenge to you for advice. | indicated to you that Standards for England would
seriously have considered accepting the cases had they been referred to us. |
should also add that if you or the committee need advice and support during the
course of the current investigations and any reports and hearings that may follow,
this will be available in person from one of our principal investigators.

We are also mindful of the standards committee's questioning of the outcome of
cases that have been sent here for investigation in the past. As ethical standards
officer, Jon Wigmore explained our approach to these cases. Although resulting
in findings of no breach, this does not imply that we condone the behaviour, and
the final reports contained criticism. Taken singly, the evidence presented in each
case was not sufficient to reach the threshold for a breach, let alone a sanction. It
is true that when allegations are taken together, a pattern of behaviour might
reinforce the view that a breach is disclosed. It is inevitable in this setting that
interpretations of the individual paragraphs of the Code are guided by legal
considerations, but | accept that there is a danger that the General Principles of
Public Life can be overshadowed by these. Of course in a disciplinary context we
have to prosecute the letter rather than the spirit of the Code, although it may be
that there is a debate to be had about the way the principles inform this. In any
case, | hope the standards committee is assured that referral of matters to
Standards for England should be an option open to them in future if they consider
it is the right course of action, and we are happy to discuss this with you on a
case-by-case basis.

| am sorry to hear that you encountered problems entering the relevant data for
the quarterly return. Colin Bardsley has spoken to Debbie Parker-Jones and
explained that our system was not designed to cope with such an unprecedented
number of complaints on a single occasion. Our monitoring team are working to
make adjustments to the system should other authorities have the same challenge
in future. The team will also provide you with dedicated support as you process
the referred complaints through their course, and will be able to enter the
information for you if it is emailed to us. Please let us know if you would like us to
do this.

Jon has emailed you separately on the question of deferral of other action. Our
legal opinion is that your committee's intentions in a referral for other action are
key. Any consultation that took place before the direction to the monitoring officer
would be relevant, for instance as required under reg.13(2) of the Standards
Committees (England) Regulations 2008. | am sure you are conversant with our
recent guidance on other action. If an assessment sub-committee believes at
assessment stage that a case merits an investigation (and by which we mean - by
implication - that it would merit a sanction if the allegation were to be proven as the
complainant said it happened), then the guidance is clear that an investigation
should occur. Rather than looking for circumstances to avoid an investigation, the
investigation is merited without further ado.

Page 62



Other action applies in different circumstances. We have been clear, even though
a potential breach of the Code must be disclosed before it can be used, that there
must be no implication of culpability or other action that looks like a sanction, for
example an apology, or in certain instances singling out an individual member for
training. As a rule of thumb, other action is more suitable for groups of members
and tit-for-tat situations that clearly lend themselves to mediation or training. If the
situation points to misconduct potentially meriting a sanction, then an investigation
follows, not other action.

In other words investigation and other action are not alternatives. They are
determined by the situation. Standards committees should also be aware that
they may identify a potential breach of the Code in an allegation, but they may
decide that it is insufficiently serious to merit further action of any kind, and offer
the complainant a review. A potential breach may be trivial, tit-for-tat or politically
motivated, and does not oblige the committee to take action.

We touched on the issue of consistency and divergence in decision-making by
local standards committees. This gets us into the central/local debate which
dominates local government, and the question of how "local" can local government
be in a judicial setting such as this. But within the context of overall fairness and
justice, we believe that local authorities should reflect their own area and the
people who live there, and therefore there is bound to be some diversity on the
ethical issues that concern them most, and which issues are the most pressing.
You made representations to us on the need to have a consideration meeting in
advance of a hearing. | would be glad if you could put these into writing so that we
can take them into account when our guidance is next reviewed.

| am glad that we have had the opportunity to meet after many conversations with
you over the years. | do hope that our dialogue with Bromsgrove will continue,
and that you feel you can approach us at any time.

Yours sincerely

John Williams
Relationship Manager

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64



855064080070 FsBR000088CECCR000FP0se0E0C0050E05G00630C06E000P000000080s0ssIoc0scECDNseeadsenesocsocsorecas

Case study

LJUJ

Bromsgrove District Council is
proud of the improvements it has

and ethics.

To coincide with the start of the
new local assessment system,
Bromsgrove published articles
in its own publication, Together
Bromsgrove’, delivered to every
household in the area. They also
issued press releases to the
local media.

The standards committee’s annual
report is circulated to the district's
libraries and parish councils as
well as the council's Customer
Services Centre and Planning
reception. Automatic updates on
related matters are emailed to

key internal and external contacts,
including the local press, and

the council's website is also used
to promote the standards
committee’s work.

Ihe ocal standa;ris rramework Ollc yeez on

"omsgrove
istrict Council

Much of Bromsgrove's publicity
around 5tandard5 has hlghUghted

have in working to improve
communities, while at the same
time reminding the public what to
do should their councillor appear to
be falling short of the high ethical
standards expected of them.

Importantly, Bromsgrove District
Council is also making sure that
its successes in raising awareness
are measurable. An annual
performance indicator has been
set based around responses in
the council's annual survey, with a
benchmark set for the percentage
of respondents who know how

to raise issues under the local
standards framework.

With the emphasis on development,
training has included small
workshops on the Code of Conduct
and informal one-to-one meetings

Page 65

APPEND IR B

L-R:

Claire Felton
Monitoring officer

Councillor Ted Tibby
Standards committee member

Debbie Roberis
Standards committee

¥ independent member

with the monitoring officer and
deputy monitoring officer, which

reminding members of their
obligations under the Code, but
also in building good waorking
relationships. Development needs
for parish coupcils - Bromsgrove
has 21 - were identified through
face-to-face meetings. Itis a pre-
emptive approach which aims to
prevent potential pitfalls rather
than waiting for complaints to
come in.

A demonstrable commitment

to promoting and maintaining
standards at Bromsgrove was
made when a full-time officer was
appointed to deal specifically with
standards and ethics related work
within the council.



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 66



	Agenda
	Hearing Procedure Notes
	4 Final Determination of an alleged failure to follow the Code of Conduct - Complaint Ref: 14/08
	Final determination - Appendix 1 to covering report (IO's report)
	Final determination - appendices to IO's report

	5 Monitoring Officer's Report
	Monitoring Officer's report (appendix 1 - local assessment statistics)
	Monitoring Officer's report (appendix 2 - ltr from SBE J Williams)
	Monitoring Officer's report (appendix 3 - SfE case study)


